
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2019 1 of 4 

City of Florence 
Planning Commission Meeting 

250 Hwy 101, Florence, OR 97439 
September 24, 2019 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting called to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Commissioner Brian Jagoe, Commissioner Andrew Miller, Commissioner Ron 
Miller, Commissioner Phil Tarvin Present: Chairperson John Murphey, Vice Chair 
Sandra Young, Commissioner Eric Hauptman,  

Commissioners Absent: None 

Staff Present: Planning Director Wendy FarleyCampbell and Admin. Assistant Vevie McPherren 

1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Start Time: 5:31 p.m. 
Action: Approve agenda as presented. 
Motion: Vice Chair Young 
Second: Commissioner Ron Miller 
Vote: Unanimous  

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item not
otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person, with a
maximum time of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

Start Time: 5:32 p.m. 

Commenter: None 

4. RESOLUTION PC 19 12 CUP 05 – First Step Second CUP
An application from Kathryn Lenox on behalf of First Step requesting approval of a temporary
Conditional Use Permit to place three recreation vehicles on the Presbyterian Church property south of
the sanctuary for the purpose of transitional housing. The proposal is for a two-year pilot project, after
which the permit would expire. The site is located at 3996 Hwy 101, Assessor’s Map no. 18-12-14-33,
Tax Lot 00400, in the Highway Zoning District regulated by FCC Title 10, Chapter 16.

Open: 5:34 p.m. 
Closed 6:02 p.m. 
Applicant: Kathryn Lenox 
Discussion: As Follows 

This document is supplemented by agenda packet materials and electronic audio / video recordings of 
the meeting. These supplemental materials may be reviewed upon request to the City Recorder.  



 

 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2019 2 of 4 

  
No Commissioner declared a conflict of interest, ex parte contact, or bias. There were no challenges. 
   
PD Farley-Campbell delivered a staff presentation on the proposed temporary conditional use permit for the 
placement of three recreation vehicles on the Presbyterian Church property.  The presentation included referral 
comments from SVFR Fire Safety Captain, Tony Miller, that was delivered on the Dais. 
(see attachments) 
 
Commissioner Brian Jagoe questioned if the applicant had received certificate of occupancy for the RVs, and PD 
FarleyCampbell stated that recreational vehicles were not regulated by building code. 
 
Applicant Testimony: Ms. Kathryn Lenox presented the First Step challenges, revisions, policies, focus, support, 
and mission.  Pastor-First Step Board President Greg Wood addressed and responded to the complaint 
testimony of noise and possible theft and detailed the progress regarding the ODOT application for indenture of 
access.  
 
Chairperson Murphey questioned the applicants if they had extended city utility services and Ms. Lenox replied 
they had not.  Chairperson Murphey then asked why they had not fulfilled the conditions of approval prior to 
allowing tenants in the RVs, and Mr. Wood stated he had been told by the Community Development 
department that holding tanks would be sufficient because they were recreational vehicles.  He continued and 
said that they had the systems pumped out by Royal Flush.  Chairperson Murphey reiterated that was not what 
was approved.   
 
The applicants said they had read the staff report and understood the conditions as stated.  There was no public 
testimony.  Staff recommended approval of the application with the conditions modified.  The modifications 
included the correction of the file number from PC 18 23 CUP 04 to PC 19 12 CUP 05, the addition of Condition 
#7 regarding all conditions of approval from PC 18 23 CUP 04 still be met, and the recommendation of Condition 
#8 regarding SVFR referral to state, “Emergency ingress and egress shall be graveled and shall be widened to 
meet the Siuslaw Valley Fire & Rescue driveway standards of 16 feet wide by 6 inches of which 12 feet, 6 inches 
shall be graveled and include a height clearance of 13 feet, 6 inches.”  She concluded and indicated that there 
would be follow up regarding the miscommunication for occupancy of the RVs prior to complying with prior 
conditions of approval.  
 
Commissioner Jagoe expressed sanitary concern about the above ground holding tanks and indicated he would 
like to see the requirement of city utilities in a reasonable time frame.  PD FarleyCampbell explained the options 
the applicants would have at the end of the two-year temporary approval period that included the application 
for permeant placement or an extension of the temporary approval.  Mr.  Wood stated property north of town 
was a proposed permanent site and did not expect to come back for an extension.  Chairperson Murphey 
concluded that if the applicant came back to apply for an extension or to apply for another location within the 
city limits, utilities would be required.  Commissioner Jagoe added that the holding tanks should be screened 
and Vice Chairperson Young asked who was responsible for the maintenance of the holding tanks.  There was 
brief Commission discussion and Commissioner Tarvin stated the company that services the tanks generally 
provides the maintenance. 
  
Action: Approval of the application and conditions of approval as presented by staff with conditions of approval 
 Motion: Commissioner Jagoe 
 Second: Commissioner Ron Miller 
 Roll Call Vote:  Unanimous        



 

 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2019 3 of 4 

  
5. RESOLUTION PC 19 14 DR 03 – Yamaha Relocation DR  

An application from Roger Center on behalf of Ed and Debbie Costa of Florence Yamaha to request 
approval of site design and outdoor storage and display for the proposed relocation at 310 Highway 101.   
Currently the location is designated a “hardware store, with limited outdoor storage and display” and 
the applicant proposes a change of use to sporting goods, specializing in ATV sales.  The property is 
located north of the Chamber of Commerce building, between 1st and 2nd streets, on the east side of 
Highway 101 at Map No. 18-12-34-11, Tax Lots 01200, 01300, 01400, 01500, 01700, and 01299 in the 
Mainstreet District regulated by FCC Title 10, Chapter 27. 

 
 
 Open: 6:12 p.m. 
 Closed 7:26 p.m.  
 Applicant: Roger Center  
 Discussion: As Follows 
  
No Commissioner declared a conflict of interest, ex parte contact, or bias.  Commissioner Hauptman indicated 
that he leases property from Mr. Costa.  There were no challenges. 
 
PD Farley-Campbell delivered a site design staff presentation on the proposed relocation of the Florence 
Yamaha.  The presentation included opponent testimony that was delivered on the Dais.  Staff recommended 
approval with the modification and revisions to the findings, conditions of approval, and additions/corrections 
as stated.  (see attachments) 
 
Commissioner Jagoe questioned the proposed hours of operation and there was brief discussion.  Vice 
Chairperson Young expressed concerns about traffic with the Revision Florence project and expressed the desire 
for more information regarding traffic flow.  PD FarleyCampbell explained the Revision Florence project site plan 
that was delivered on the Dais and there was additional discussion. 
 
Applicant Testimony: Mr. Ed Costa explained the traffic flow improvement that was expected by the move to the 
proposed new location.   Mr. Bob Carroll, Carrollton Designs explained the proposed site plan and the efforts to 
address possible issues of traffic flow, dust, and noise.  
 
Commissioner Hauptman asked where customers would be test driving the ATVs and Mr. Costa stated the ATV 
would be loaded on to a trailer and taken to the sand dunes on the south jetty road.  Commissioner Jagoe asked 
what the proposed hours of operation were and Mr. Costa replied the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  and 
added that the hours would not be extended.  Vice Chairperson Young asked for clarification of the traffic flow 
and suggested directional signage.  There was discussion of possible access and circulation issues.  
Commissioner Tarvin asked for clarification of commercial and delivery truck traffic and Mr. Costa explained the 
proposed traffic plan.   
 
The applicants said they had read the staff report and understood the conditions as stated.   
 
 Proponents: John LaRocco, Riley Hayes, Ron Green, Gary Armstrong, Peggy Pearson, Jim 

Hoberg, and Sadie Ward 
 Opponents: Shirley Stint and Meris Robison 
 
Staff recommended approval of the application with the conditions stated and recommended amendments.  



 

 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2019 4 of 4 

  
 Action: Approval of the application and conditions of approval as presented by staff 

with conditions of approval 
 Motion: Commissioner Brian Jagoe 
 Second: Commissioner Ron Miller 
 Roll Call Vote:  Unanimous 
 
6.  PLANNING COMMISSION REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
 Discussion: None 
  
7.  PLANNING DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
 Discussion:  None 
  
8.  PLANNINIG COMMISSION CALENDAR 
  
 Discussion: Housing Code initiation on October 8th  
  Coffee Kiosk & Car Wash October 22nd  
  Pro Lumber Move, Oak Commons for final SUB & PUD, & CUP SFR in Multi-

Zoning on November 12th  
  CC/PC Joint Hearing on November 18th @ FEC 

     
 Meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
  ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                                                     John Murphey, Chairperson  
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vevie McPherren, Admin. Assistant 















1

Dylan Huber-Heidorn

From: Nancy Harvey <nanisalive@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 12:34 PM
To: planningdepartment
Subject: Relocation of Yamaha

For the record, we are not in favor of relocating the repair shop to the 
other side of 101.  If that, indeed, is supposed to be the future entrance 
to Old Town, having it cradled between a building materials store and a 
motorcycle repair shop is not only tacky, but distasteful. 
 
You can do better than that!   Please consider something more 
appropriate for our city, like closer to city hall and the Chamber welcome 
center. 
 
Thank you 
 
Nan and Don Harvey 
 



1

Dylan Huber-Heidorn

From: Robert Nehl <nehlie@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 3:11 PM
To: planningdepartment
Subject: ATV

Another NO vote for the ATV Business to go where the lumber yard is on HWY 101. 


























